
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
May 30, 2023 
 
Mark J. Stempler 
Becker & Poliakoff 
625 N. Flagler Drive, 7th Floor 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
 
Via Email: MStempler@beckerlawyers.com 
 
Dear Mr. Stempler:  
 
This letter is a formal written response to the Bid Protest (“Protest”) submitted by your office on behalf of Risk 
Management Associates, Inc. (“RMA”) on May 10, 2023 regarding RFP-060-23-WV for Insurance Broker 
Services (“RFP”) that was issued by the City of Hollywood (“City”).  The Protest was reviewed in accordance 
with Section 38.52 of the City’s Code of Ordinances (“Code”), after which, the Protest Committee (“Committee”) 
determined that the Protest is without merit.  Therefore, the award to the top ranked firm, Aon shall proceed 
forthwith pursuant to Section 38.52(D), City Code. 

 
Upon receipt of the Protest and determination by the City Attorney that the protest was filed timely and legally 
sufficient, a Committee consisting of three members was appointed by the City Manager and counselled by the 
City Attorney.  The Committee was chaired by David E. Keller (Director, Financial Services), and included Adam 
Reichbach (Assistant City Manager, Finance and Administration) and Tami Thornton (Assistant Director, Human 
Resources) as members.  The Committee was provided access to the Protest and RFP files for review in order 
to settle and resolve the protest, which concluded with a ruling on the matter during a Committee meeting on 
May 24, 2023.   

 
To resolve the Protest, the Committee consider the following factors: 

 
• Two alternative scoring scenarios were completed and analyzed, which included:  

 
o Revised scoring of the Proposers’ Fee Schedule scoring criteria based on a formula (lowest 

price / proposed price x 20 points), which resulted in RMA maintaining its rank as #2 (See 
Scenario A below).  
 

o Revised scoring with the removal of the Proposers’ Fee Schedule scoring criteria and all 
points awarded thereunder, which resulted in RMA maintaining its rank as #2 (See Scenario 
B below). 
 

• The RFP was published on March 14, 2023, with the Proposers’ Fee Schedule scoring criteria and 
point value (20 points) included, which was not based on a formula, and did not receive any protests 
or disputes throughout the entire solicitation process until after a Notice of Intent to Award was issued 
on May 2, 2023.  The City previously issued an RFP for these services in March 2019 (See 
Attachment 4) using the same evaluation criteria, which did not receive any protests or disputes. 
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• There is no legal requirement that the Proposers’ Fee Schedule scoring criteria or any cost related 

criteria within an RFP for Insurance Broker Services be based on a formula. 
 

• Four RFPs for Insurance Broker Services were identified and reviewed from other governments 
throughout the country that had a fee/cost criteria that was not based on a formula (See Attachment 
5). 

 
• The type, quality, and level of services proposed by the six respondents to the RFP varied and were 

not considered an apples-to-apples comparison, hence the Proposers’ Fee Schedule scoring 
criteria was evaluated from a qualitative standpoint based on the value of what was proposed by each 
respondent. 

 
 

Scenario A - Proposers’ Fee Schedule scoring criteria based on a formula. 
 

 
 
 

Scenario B - Proposers’ Fee Schedule scoring criteria removed/eliminated. 
 

 
 
 



    

 
After reviewing the Protest and RFP documents in their entirety, analyzing the factors above, and taking other 
relevant issues into consideration, the Committee made a final determination that the protest is without merit.  
Therefore, the Final Scores and Ranks for RFP 060-23-WV (See Attachment 3) shall remain and the City shall 
proceed with the Notice of Intent to Award (See Attachment 6) that was posted on May 2, 2023 for the RFP. 
 
Please contact me at (954) 921-3628 if you have any questions or require any further assistance.  
 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
 
 
Steve Stewart 
Director/CPO, Office of Procurement and Contract Compliance 
 
 
Attachments:  1. Bid Protest 

2. RFP 060-23-WV (Insurance Broker Services)  
3. Final Scores and Ranks (RFP 060-23-WV) 
4. RFP 4606-19-AP (Previous RFP for Insurance Broker Services) 
5. Four Sample RFPs Without a Formula for Cost 
6. Notice of Intent to Award 
 


